

Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of a meeting of the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at The Guildhall, St Giles Street, Northampton, NN1 1DE on Thursday 14 September 2023 at 6.00 pm.

Present:

Councillor Rosie Herring (Chair) Councillor Nick Sturges-Alex (Vice-Chair) Councillor Phil Bignell Councillor Greg Lunn Councillor Wendy Randall Councillor Emma Roberts

Also Present:

Councillor Matt Golby, Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Wellbeing and Health Integration Councillor Jonathan Harris Councillor Rosie Humphreys Toby Sanders, Chief Executive ICB David Maher, Managing Director NHFT Anne Rackham, Interim Chief Operating Officer NHFT Giles West, Associate Director for Urgent and Emergency Care ICB

Apologies for Absence:

Councillor Rufia Ashraf Councillor Raymond Connolly Councillor Julie Davenport Councillor Anna King Councillor Brian Sargeant

Officers:

Anna Earnshaw, Chief Executive Stuart Lackenby, Executive Director - People Services & Deputy Chief Executive Ashley Leduc, Assistant Director - Commissioning and Performance James Edmunds, Democratic Services Assistant Manager Maisie McInnes, Democratic Services Officer

9. **Declarations of Interest**

Councillor Roberts declared an ongoing interest as:

- Chair of Food Aid Far Cotton
- A board member of Food Aid Alliance West

• A board member for the Community Training Partnership contract to be delivered by the Community Law Service.

10. Minutes

RESOLVED: That the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed the final minutes of the former People Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the meeting on 27 June 2023 as an accurate record.

11. Step-up and step-down community transformation

The Chair welcomed the Chief Executive and colleagues from Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (NHFT) and Northamptonshire Integrated Care Board (ICB) to the meeting. The Chief Executive ICB, Toby Sanders introduced himself and colleagues David Maher Managing Director NHFT, Anne Rackham Interim Chief Operating Officer NHFT, and Giles West Associate Director for Urgent and Emergency Care ICB.

The Chief Executive ICB expressed a commitment to collaborative working with scrutiny and shared that the presentation on Step-up and Step-down Community Transformation which signalled the start of community work taking place across the county in different care settings and various programmes such as the Age Well and iCAN Programme. Colleagues from NHFT and ICB delivered the presentation which detailed the progress and planned development of Pathway 2 provision in Northamptonshire.

Members listened and observed the presentation and following a discussion made the following points:

Members questioned the distribution of beds in West Northamptonshire compared to North Northamptonshire and made the observation that there were more beds in North Northamptonshire and asked if there would be an equal distribution following the transformation work. The Interim Chief Operating Officer NHFT explained that through urgent care planning NHFT have looked at geographical areas and beds required. In the future with changing the estate and changing the number of beds available there would be a much more even distribution.

Members raised the issue of cross-border areas, such as residents bordering Oxfordshire and the role of palliative care and hospices in this area. They felt that if residents currently able to go to the hospice at Adderbury were prevented access in the future then this would cause problems for the rural area. Members stressed that another hospice was needed in the rural South Northants area. The Managing Director reassured councillors that a review of palliative care was currently being done and feedback following the review could be presented back to the committee.

Members asked if Daventry could be added to the map in the presentation. They also expressed concern regarding the average figure of 100 people being admitted to hospital each day and asked if there was any data showing the reasoning for their admittance. The Associate Director for Urgent and Emergency Care ICB responded that this figure was a success for Northamptonshire as this was historically higher, but due to the success of the transformation programmes, numbers have been kept down and early intervention and other preventative methods in the future could help reduce numbers even further. He continued that upskilling reablement staff and purchasing raiser chairs were other ways that they were improving care quality. In terms of the question regarding data collection, they were continuing to collect intelligence but there wasn't enough information relating to sudden spikes in illness (e.g., respiratory related illness during the heatwave) but they were continuing to collect data over time.

Members asked if the two local authorities in West Northamptonshire had affected the delivery of ICB with varying approaches to adult social care and health. The Interim Chief Operating Officer shared that NNC and WNC were both exciting areas with varying needs for each area, so the overall aims were the same for each area, but the design was different which was positive. It was also useful to be able to share practice and knowledge across Northamptonshire. The Chief Executive ICB added that in the future there would be difficult decisions relating to how we tackle challenges relating to adult social care and health and procuring financial investment for the future. This was part of the reason for seeking early engagement with Overview and Scrutiny which could help to inform future choices.

Members asked if modelling could be used to show what exactly is needed and following this, we could look at what WNC could provide. The Interim Chief Operating Officer explained that they were in the early stages with data collection, as they needed to understand what a year looks like day by day in order to understand the analytics to inform modelling.

The Chief Executive ICB encouraged everyone at the meeting to get their vaccinations for the winter season and to share the message with their communities to help the NHS this winter.

The Chair thanked the Chief Executive and colleagues from NHFT and ICB for attending the meeting and providing useful information on the transformation programme and expressed scrutiny's openness to assisting in the future with the ongoing work in this area. The Chair felt positive about the work of the Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) and giving back to local people.

The Chief Executive and colleagues from NHFT and ICB left the meeting at this juncture.

The committee considered conclusions resulting from the presentation. It was highlighted that the committee could request an update on the outcomes of the review of all-age palliative care. In response to further comments, the Executive Director People Services suggested that the committee could ask for more information about the timeline for work on Pathway 2 provision and on the plan for winter pressures. This would increase scrutiny's understanding of the nature of the challenges faced rather than the way the situation might be portrayed in the media.

RESOLVED: That the committee:

- a) Noted the presentation on Step-up and Step-down community transformation
- b) Agreed that the outcomes of the review of all-age palliative care in West Northamptonshire be brought back to the committee at a future date.

c) Requested more information on the timeline for Step-up and Step-down community transformation and on seasonal challenges and impact of delivering services in the Winter period.

12. Performance against adult care, public health, and wellbeing key performance indicators

The Executive Director People Services introduced the presentation and explained that following the previous meeting, members had requested an item on performance and key performance indicators and going forward this would be a standard item on the agenda for scrutiny to review at their agenda planning meeting and consider opportunities for further scrutiny work to be brought to the committee. This would give scrutiny an opportunity for greater pre-decision scrutiny. The Executive Director People Services added that scrutiny could also engage with the corporate scorecard that was regularly presented to Cabinet on performance.

The Executive Director People Services delivered the presentation on Performance Measures 2023-24 and explained that changes implemented by government had reflected the changes in data collection frameworks and inspection criteria going forward. The presentation indicated the metrics that had been removed and added as a result of the changing national context.

Members thanked the Executive Director People Services for providing the information that scrutiny requested and expressed that it was important for scrutiny to be able to use this information to inform their approach. They expressed concern relating to the rate of elderly falls receiving emergency care and requested more information on this and how it corresponded to residents looking for exterior adaptations to their home such as outdoor steps and railings.

The Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Wellbeing and Health Integration supported the Executive Director of People Services in the direction of travel for monitoring performance and welcomed the challenge from scrutiny and open discussion leading up to the CQC inspection and in the future.

RESOLVED: That the committee received an informative presentation relating to the Performance Measures from the Executive Director People Services and agreed to add this as a standing item to the future agenda planning meetings to inform opportunities for future scrutiny work.

13. CQC Outcomes and update from Quality & Contacts team on care homes

The Executive Director People Services delivered the presentation on Carers which detailed the current carer support provider model, and the council were currently looking at how we commission work going forward. The current model is commissioned by NNC and ICB on behalf of WNC on a two year contract from October 2022-2024. He explained the council would be going out to tender procurement next year for a solution going forward and would offer out to other organisations through the procurement process.

Members thanked the Executive Director People Services for the comprehensive presentation asked if the work would correlate with the estates exercise being undertaken by NHFT and ICB and look at the respite offer. The Assistant Director for Commissioning & Partnerships explained the offer was around going into people's homes rather than offering building and traditional respite services.

Members discussed the issue of communication with carers and making sure the council is reaching people and how we can improve our working relationship with ICB. The Executive Director People Services explained the starting point for communication was the council's website, and he had flagged a number of documents out of date to be removed and the need for the website to reflect what is available. He was currently working to redevelop the website to become more user friendly. He encouraged councillors to promote what was on offer within their wards too, as navigators within WNC to signpost residents to what help and support is available for them.

Members discussed the role of the LAPs and the need to get the right structure and people involved to deliver benefits for people in the area. The Executive Director of People Services explained this would be the responsibility of the project leads to promote attendance and hold people to account for non-attendance. He felt that with the new contract, there would be an opportunity for better data reporting as historically data was too generic in local area profiles and did not reflect the diversity in community they supported.

Members asked what the position was for young people caring for parents. The Executive Director People Services explained that Northamptonshire Carers was commissioned to support young carers. Adult social care was responsible for supporting a young person who was a carer in this capacity; children's social was responsible for supporting them as young person.

The Chair invited the Assistant Director for Commissioning & Partnerships to deliver a supplementary presentation on the Quality in Care Homes which profiled the care homes in West Northamptonshire and their rating on a scale of inadequate, requires improvement, good and outstanding.

Members thanked the Assistant Director for Commissioning & Partnerships for the informative presentation and the representation of data. Members discussed the issue of staffing and the impact of Covid-19. The Assistant Director for Commissioning & Partnerships shared that it remained a big concern on the clinical side and explained that a workforce strategy was underway to look at how retainment of staff could be improved.

Members asked for assurance relating to complaints from care homes and how these were responded to. The Assistant Director for Commissioning & Partnerships explained that it was rare that routine monitoring visits would find major problems, and that issues were raised through whistleblowing, CQC inspection and safeguarding concern. The council quickly responded with an unannounced visit in these cases and intervention methods, and actively encouraged safeguarding referrals to be investigated.

Members stressed the need for more care home inspections, in particular those who had been rated good and had not been inspected in the last 12 months as a preventative measure to ensure their ratings remained good.

RESOLVED: That the committee

- a) Noted the presentations on care and quality in care homes.
- b) Recommended that the Council offer the opportunity to take part in the Well Led Programme to care home providers currently rated good to mitigate the risk of a lower rating in a subsequent inspection.

14. Update on recruitment of Coordinators to the Local Area Partnerships (LAPs)

The Executive Director People Services delivered a verbal update on the recruitment of coordinators to the LAPs and explained that the council had sourced funding from the public health reserve with the condition to support and recruit 5 LAP project leads. He advised scrutiny that they had successfully recruited to 4 positions in Northampton and the Executive Director People Services would circulate their information to scrutiny outside of the meeting. He felt positively that this would allow for more information to be received on the progress of the LAPs and contribute to their success.

Members commented that low attendance from some partners at LAP meetings could still hamper their effectiveness. The Cabinet Member for Adult Care, Wellbeing and Health Integration emphasised that all partners had committed to participate and should be held to account if not doing so.

RESOLVED: That the committee received the verbal update on the recruitment of coordinators to the LAPs and would receive information relating to the coordinators and positions in Northampton outside of the meeting.

15. **Report from the former People Overview and Scrutiny Committee Review of** Integrated Care across Northamptonshire (iCAN)

The Chair expressed that she was impressed with the final report and thoroughly agreed with recommendations contained in the report. The Chair suggested that the recommendation relating to LAPs and GP response can be picked up as part of the standing item on the LAPs in the work programme.

The Chair of the iCAN task and finish panel thanked members of the panel and the Assistant Manager Democratic Services for their hard work and putting together the report. She expressed concern regarding the last recommendation relating to finance and the panel strongly felt information was not provided as the programme was designed with the aim to provide financial savings.

The Chair thanked the Chair of the iCAN scrutiny panel and welcomed the outcomes from the report and suggested that the last recommendation be passed onto Corporate Overview and Scrutiny committee for consideration as their remit sits within financial scrutiny or the Overview and Scrutiny Triangulation Group for consideration.

RESOLVED: That the committee agreed the report from the former People Overview and Scrutiny Committee Review of Integrated Care across Northamptonshire (iCAN) subject to the amendment of recommendation K to read:

K) The Overview and Scrutiny Triangulation Group to recommend that the appropriate Overview and Scrutiny committee(s) receive a report to a future meeting confirming:

• The total financial cost to West Northamptonshire Council of the iCAN programme to the end of 2022/23, including the cost of the system transformation partner

• The positive outcomes directly resulting from the iCAN programme delivered to the end of 2022/23.

16. **Proposal for a task and finish group on Unpaid Carers and how WNC supports** carers and assist with development of Carers Strategy

The Chair welcomed Councillors Jonathan Harris and Rosie Humphreys for attending the committee to comment on the proposal for a task and finish group. Councillor Harris and Humphreys thanked the Chair for allowing the motion to come to the committee at the earliest opportunity.

Councillor Harris addressed the committee and shared that unpaid carers was an emergent theme coming through from the LAPs and an area of focus that hasn't always had the attention it needs. The Carer's Leave Act 2023 is one of the motivating factors for putting the proposal forward to scrutiny as statistics showed that nationally 2 million people will be impacted by the Act. Another statistic showed that 600 people a day leave their career to become a carer and the University of Sheffield found that unpaid carers save the government billions of pounds. He urged scrutiny to form a task and finish group with the outline set out in the proposal and encourage carers to come forward to inform the task and finish group and the need to use their own experience to inform how best they could be supported.

The committee discussed involvement in a scrutiny review and a draft scrutiny review proposal form produced for consideration. The Assistant Manager Democratic Services explained that scrutiny could gather interest from the committee first and extend to non-executive members to form the task and finish group. The draft proposal included a focus on ensuring the council's preparedness for the new legislation and the development of a new council Carers Strategy, as discussed at the agenda planning meeting. The committee should consider arrangements for finalising the plan for the scrutiny review if it was not in a position to do this at the current meeting.

Members discussed the membership of the task and finish panel and agreed that 7 members should form the group in total with one of the proposers of the motion to

join the group along with 6 other members, who would come from committee members first and then other non-executive councillors.

RESOLVED: That the committee:

- a) Agreed to form a task and finish panel on unpaid carers and how WNC supports carers and to assist with the development of the carers strategy.
- b) Agreed that the Chair and Vice-Chair would agree the final plan for the scrutiny review of support for unpaid carers to enable this to be done ahead of the next committee meeting.

17. Review of Committee Work Programme

The Chair asked members to review the committee work programme and consider the topics for scrutiny and agree any items arising from the meeting to the work programme.

Members agreed to add the proposal for a task and finish group on unpaid carers and how WNC supports carers and assist with the development of the carers strategy to the work programme. In addition, members wished to add the review on palliative care that arose from the presentation on step-up and step-down community transformation.

RESOLVED: That the committee reviewed the work programme for 2023/24 and agreed to add the following items:

- A proposal for a task and finish panel on unpaid carers and how WNC supports carers and to assist with the development of the carers strategy
- A review of palliative care from the NHFT and ICB to be brought to a future meeting of the Adult Social Care and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

18. Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

The meeting closed at 8.30 pm

Chair: _____

Date: _____